


  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PUBLIC NOTICE 
  

Agenda for the January 28, 2020 Regular Board Meeting 
Gary Morava Recreation Center 

110 W Camp McDonald Road, Prospect Heights, IL 60070 
 
 
I. Call to Order – 7:00 p.m. 
 A. Roll Call    
 B.   Pledge of Allegiance    
      
II. Corrections/Additions/Approval of Agenda 
  
III. Correspondence 
 A. Notice of Planning / Zoning Board of Appeals Public Hearing January 23, 2020 
 B. Invitation to 2020 IAPD Joint Legislative Breakfast February 14, 2020 in Glenview 
 C. Invitation to 2020 IAPD Joint Legislative Breakfast February 22, 2020 in 

Schaumburg 
 D. Audit Management letter 
   
IV. Recognition/Welcome 
   
V. Public Comment  

Completion of Resident Comment Form required prior to Call to Order.  Submit to 
Executive Director. 

   
VI. Approval of Minutes 
 A. Regular Board Meeting – December 17, 2019  
   
VII. Announcements (Meetings) 
 A. Regular Board Meeting – February 25, 2020 7:00 p.m. GMRC 
   
VIII. Park District Treasurer’s Report 
 A. Approval of Cash Report #1 
 B. Approval of Warrants for Payment 
  
IX. Superintendent of Finance and Planning Report 
  
X. Attorney’s Report 
 Legal Matter  
  

 
 
 



Regular Board Meeting Agenda – January 28, 2020                                           Page 2 
 
 
 

XI. Administrative/Operational Summary 
 A. Executive Director    
 B. Superintendent of Recreation 
 C. Superintendent of Facilities and Parks 
 D. Director of Golf  
 E. Recreation Supervisors 
   
XII. Unfinished/Ongoing Business 
 A. Lexington Homes:  Muir Park subcommittee recommendation   
 B. Feasibility Study 
   
XIII. New Business 
 A. Authorizing FY2019 Transfers between Funds   
 B. Resolution No. 1.28.2020 

Adoption of Policy for handling complaints of sexual harassment made by 
elected officials against other elected officials 

 C. Adoption of Combined Budget and Appropriation Ordinance 01.28.2020 

 D. Ordinance No. 1.28.2020A 

Adoption of ordinance prohibiting the use of cannabis on Park District property 
or in facilities 

   
XIV. Recess into Executive Session (Visitors are Excused at this Time) 
 In accordance with the Open Meetings Act (5ILCS 1220/2 Section 2A 

Subsection C) for the purpose of discussion of Personnel (Section 2(c) (1)) 
  
XV. Adjournment  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Note 1:  Meeting Location – Gary Morava Recreation Center, 110 W Camp McDonald Road, Prospect Heights, IL 
60070 
Note 2:  If you would like to attend a Park Board meeting but require an auxiliary aid, such as a sign language 
interpreter, please contact the Executive Director, 847-394-2848, at least 72 hours prior to the scheduled meeting. 

 
Our mission is to enhance the quality of life for all residents of the District through the development and 
maintenance of park lands and facilities utilizing available resources, as well as to promote community 

involvement through a variety of recreation programs, educational opportunities and special events. 















































MINUTES OF THE REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
OF THE COMMISSIONERS AND OFFICERS 

OF THE PROSPECT HEIGHTS PARK DISTRICT 
OLD ORCHARD COUNTRY CLUB 

700 W RAND ROAD, MOUNT PROSPECT, IL 60056 
TUESDAY, DECEMBER 17, 2019 

 
Call to Order 
Roll Call  
Tim Jones called the Regular Board Meeting of the Prospect Heights Park District to order at 7:04 
p.m. 
 
Commissioners present: Also Present: 
Ellen Avery  Christina Ferraro – Executive Director 
Vicki Carney Julie Caporusso – Superintendent of Recreation 
Betty Cloud Dino Squiers – Superintendent of Parks & Facilities 
Terry Curtis Edlyn Castil – Admin. Asst./Recording Secretary 
Karl Jackson Marc Heidkamp – Director of Golf Operations 
Tim Jones Annette Curtis – Superintendent of Finance & Planning 
Eric Kirste  
  
Commissioners absent:  
None  
  
A quorum was present.  
  

Corrections/Additions/Approval of Agenda 
A motion was made by Commissioner Cloud and seconded by Commissioner Kirste to approve 
the agenda as submitted.  The motion was unanimously approved with a voice vote.  The motion 
carried. 
 
Correspondence 

PDRMA Employee Wellness Grant 
The Park District was awarded a $1,000 grant from PDRMA for their proposal for the Wellness 
Wednesdays program.  Part of the grant award was used to purchase aluminum water bottles 
for the employee health initiative program. 
 
Recognition/Welcome 
None 
   
Public Comment 
None 
 
Approval of Minutes 
Regular Board Meeting – November 19, 2019 
A motion was made by Commissioner Jackson and seconded by Commissioner Avery to approve 
the November 19, 2019 Regular Board Meeting Minutes as submitted.  The motion was approved 
with a voice vote.  The motion carried. 
 
Announcements (Meetings)  
The next regular board meeting will be held on Tuesday, January 28, 2020 at 7 p.m. at GMRC.   
 
 
 
 



REGULAR BOARD MEETING MINUTES 12.17.19               PAGE 2 
 
Park District Treasurer’s Report 
Cash Report #12 

 
A motion was made by Commissioner Carney and seconded by Commissioner Avery to accept 
the Treasurer’s Report – Cash Report #12 dated December 17, 2019 in the amount of 
$3,597,600.04.  The motion was approved with a unanimous voice vote.  The motion carried. 
 
Approval of Warrants for Payment  
A motion was made by Commissioner Carney and seconded by Commissioner Cloud to accept 
Warrants for payment as submitted for Vendor Warrants #11, 11A, and Payroll 23, 24 in the 
amount of $287,208.75.  The motion was approved by a roll call vote.   
Ayes:  Commissioners Avery, Carney, Cloud, Curtis, Jackson, Jones, Kirste 
Nays:  None 
Abstain: None  
Absent:   None  
The motion carried.   
 
Superintendent of Finance and Planning Report 
As submitted. 
 
Attorney’s Report 
None 
 
Administrative/Operational Summary 
Executive Director – as submitted.  Executive Director Christina Ferraro also reported Lexington 
Homes is paying Ancel Glink directly for time billed related to proposed development. The Muir 
Park (Tim Jones and Terry Curtis) met regarding the proposed development met and reviewed 
all aspects of the project.  Commissioner Jones, requested Park Board members submit 
questions or concerns about the project to him to compile the information and there will be 
continued discussion at the next board meeting.  Christina also reported that an offer has been 
extended to an individual for the Food & Beverage Operations Manager and she should hear a 
response shortly. 
 
Superintendent of Recreation – as submitted.  Superintendent of Recreation Julie Caporusso 
reported the Michelle Brennan & Kathy DeCoursey are job sharing the Registrar position and it is 
going well.  Michelle is also working as the part-time Accounting Clerk in Administration.  Julie 
reported signage has been posted and postcards were distributed to help promote the Park 
District’s Preschool program.  Entertainment for the 2020 Block Party has been secured. 
 
Superintendent of Facilities and Parks – as submitted.  Superintendent of Facilities and Parks 
Dino Squiers reported Staff is wrapping up projects at the GMRC classrooms.         
 
Director of Golf Operations – as submitted.  Director of Golf Marc Heidkamp reported that the 
Brunch with Santa event went well. 

Mt Pros State Payroll Sweep Acct.   $ (2,912.36) 
Mt Pros State Vendor Sweep Acct.  $ (47,502.00) 
Mt Pros State Imprest   $ 2,218.06 
Mt Pros State General/Sweep   $ 819,366.00 
Mt Pros State ATM  $ 17,113.03 
Mt Pros State Cash Reserves   $ - 
Mt Pros State Investment   $ 2,456,317.31 
CD Investment    $ 353,000.00 

    Totals $ 3,597,600.04 



REGULAR BOARD MEETING MINUTES 12.17.19               PAGE 3 
 
Administrative/Operational Summary (continued) 
Recreation Supervisors – as submitted.  Moving forward, Staff will reformat how the total 
membership for the Fitness Center is reported. 
 
Unfinished/Ongoing Business 
Lexington Homes 
Commissioner Jones will distribute information to the Commissioners this week. 
 
Feasibility Study 
Staff met with Frank of Williams Architects and had a discussion related to the Park District 
property and now has a better understanding with what the Park District we can do on the 
property.  There will be continued discussion at the regular board meeting in March 2020.  
 
New Business 
Proposed 2020 Board Meeting Schedule  
Executive Director Christina Ferraro reviewed the proposed 2020 Regular Board Meeting dates.  
There are three proposed dates, 3/31/20, 11/12/20 and 12/15/20, that are not the fourth Tuesday 
of the month due to the timing of holidays and budget deadlines.   
 
A motion was made by Commissioner Curtis and seconded by Commissioner Kirste to accept the 
2020 Regular Board Meeting Schedule as submitted.  The motion was unanimously approved 
with a voice vote.  The motion carried. 
  
Proposed FY2020 Budget  
Annette provided a presentation and reviewed the proposed FY2020 Budget which included the 
four major funds – Major Funds, Minor Funds, Capital Funds and Debt Funds.  The Board thanked 
Annette and Staff for their work with compiling the FY2020 Budget and approved for its 30-day 
public display.  
  
Adopt Tax Levy Ordinance 12.17.2019  
A motion was made by Commissioner Cloud and seconded by Commissioner Kirste to adopt Tax 
Levy Ordinance 12.17.2019.  The motion was approved by a roll call vote.   
Ayes:  Commissioners Avery, Carney, Cloud, Curtis, Jackson, Jones, Kirste 
Nays:  None 
Abstain: None  
Absent:   None  
The motion carried.   
 
Property Tax Extension Resolution 12.17.2019  
A motion was made by Commissioner Cloud and seconded by Commissioner Avery to adopt 
Property Tax Extension Resolution 12.17.2019.  The motion was approved by a roll call vote.   
Ayes:  Commissioners Avery, Carney, Cloud, Curtis, Jackson, Jones, Kirste 
Nays:  None 
Abstain: None  
Absent:   None  
The motion carried.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



REGULAR BOARD MEETING MINUTES 12.17.19               PAGE 4 
 
Adjournment 
With no further business to discuss, a motion was made by Commissioner Carney and seconded 
by Commissioner Curtis to adjourn the Regular Board Meeting at 7:59 p.m.  The motion was 
unanimously approved by a voice vote.  The motion carried. 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
Edlyn Castil, Recording Secretary     
 
Secretary:  _________________________________ 
Ellen Avery, Prospect Heights Park District Secretary  



TO:         Board of Commissioners, Prospect Heights Park District  Pink

FROM:     Park District Treasurer  

DATE: 1/28/2020 CASH REPORT FY 19

Motion by Commissioner ________________ to approve CASH REPORT 1

1/28/2020 as submitted.  Seconded by Commissioner _____________ .

Payroll #90001511 sweep acct. (2,800.08)$             

Vendor #90001503 sweep acct. (137,225.83)$         

Imprest #90001529 Account Closed December 20, 2019 -$                       

General/Sweep #90001498 659,051.00$          

ATM #90001537 26,633.03$            

Investment #107503657 2,457,932.42$       

CD Investment #355751 Maturity 1.8.2021 annual yeild 1.51% 353,000.00$          

TOTALS 3,356,590.54$       Voice Vote

 

FINANCIAL RESOLUTION

Motion by Commissioner ______________ to approve WARRANT RESOLUTION

1/28/2020  as submitted.  Seconded by Commissioner ______________ .

APPROVAL  OF  WARRANTS 1/28/2020

VENDOR WARRANTS           AMOUNTS

12 In the amount of CHECKS ISSUED $222,569.63

12A In the amount of ELECTRONIC $56,902.89

Total Vendor Warrants $279,472.52

PAYROLL WARRANTS

12/6/2019

25 In the amount of 68,347.77              

gross plus employer costs

12/20/2019

26 In the amount of 67,036.33              

gross plus employer costs

Total Payroll Warrants 135,384.10            

 

TOTAL OF WARRANTS $414,856.62 Roll Call

  



PROSPECT HEIGHTS PARK  DISTRICT ELECTRONIC VENDOR WARRANT REPORT FOR FY 2019

VENDOR WARRANT 12A

ELECTRONIC VENDOR WARRANTS  

December  

FY 2019  

DATE VENDOR NAME

TRANSACTION 

DESCRIPTION AMOUNT

12/3/2019 WINTRUST CAPITIAL EQUIPMENT LEASE $2,175.60

12/5/2019 IMRF NOV 2019 PENSION $14,874.92

12/6/2019 ELAN VARIOUS $19,727.74

12/18/2019 IL DEPT OF REVENUE SALES TAX $18,534.96

12/23/2019 IL DEPT OF REVENUE SALES TAX $1,589.67

TOTAL $56,902.89



1/14/2020 10:56:19 AM Page 1 of 4

Check Report
Prospect Heights Park District, IL By Check Number

Date Range: 12/01/2019 - 12/31/2019

Vendor Number Vendor Name Payment Amount NumberPayment TypePayment Date Discount Amount

Bank Code: AP Bank-AP Bank

01120 REPUBLIC SERVICES INC 12/12/2019 48655-565.92Regular 0.00

02189 ANNETTE CURTIS 12/04/2019 48747200.00Regular 0.00

01004 1ST AYD CORPORATION 12/05/2019 48748264.22Regular 0.00

01270 ACE SECURITY SYSTEMS INC 12/05/2019 4874929,799.00Regular 0.00

01943 ARLINGTON PAVEMENT PROFESSIONALS INC 12/05/2019 4875018,800.00Regular 0.00

01015 ASSOCIATED LABOR CORPORATION OF AMERIC 12/05/2019 4875110,341.38Regular 0.00

01744 BLACK LINE FOX VALLEY LLC 12/05/2019 487521,659.00Regular 0.00

01871 CLESEN PROTURF SOLUTIONS LLC 12/05/2019 4875377.92Regular 0.00

01022 COMCAST 12/05/2019 48754108.71Regular 0.00

01022 COMCAST 12/05/2019 48755153.41Regular 0.00

01023 COMMONWEALTH EDISON 12/05/2019 4875625.75Regular 0.00

01042 CONSTELLATION NEWENERGY - GAS DIVISION L 12/05/2019 4875783.39Regular 0.00

01042 CONSTELLATION NEWENERGY - GAS DIVISION L 12/05/2019 487581,493.95Regular 0.00

01103 DANNA J. KOBESKI 12/05/2019 487593,810.00Regular 0.00

01034 FIRST COMMUNICATIONS LLC 12/05/2019 48760495.11Regular 0.00

01250 GARY KANTOR 12/05/2019 4876117.50Regular 0.00

02214 GLUECKERT FUNERAL HOME 12/05/2019 48762200.00Regular 0.00

01423 GORDON FOOD SERVICE INC 12/05/2019 487631,624.46Regular 0.00

01037 GRAINGER 12/05/2019 4876445.22Regular 0.00

02215 GRUMMAN/BUTKUS ASSOCIATES 12/05/2019 487652,730.32Regular 0.00

02216 INTERLINE CASH SYSTEMS, INC. 12/05/2019 487661,844.00Regular 0.00

01182 JAMES SAMMONS 12/05/2019 487671,295.00Regular 0.00

01130 JEFF ELLIS & ASSOCIATES INC 12/05/2019 48768325.00Regular 0.00

01206 JOURNAL AND TOPICS NEWSPAPER 12/05/2019 487692,500.00Regular 0.00

01050 MENARDS 12/05/2019 4877055.15Regular 0.00

02097 MORGAN SERVICES INC 12/05/2019 48771547.56Regular 0.00

01057 NAPA HEIGHTS AUTOMOTIVE 12/05/2019 48772334.64Regular 0.00

01059 NICOR 12/05/2019 48773128.52Regular 0.00

01775 NORTH TOWN SEWER SERVICE CO 12/05/2019 487741,125.45Regular 0.00

01064 PENDELTON TURF SUPPLY 12/05/2019 487759,270.50Regular 0.00

01066 PLATINUM SYSTEMS INC 12/05/2019 48776190.00Regular 0.00

01168 POSTMASTER 12/05/2019 487771,338.70Regular 0.00

01135 PURCHASE POWER 12/05/2019 4877834.51Regular 0.00

01070 RAMROD 12/05/2019 48779544.43Regular 0.00

01071 REINDERS INC 12/05/2019 487802,315.17Regular 0.00

01120 REPUBLIC SERVICES INC 12/05/2019 48781288.95Regular 0.00

01072 RIVER TRAILS PARK DISTICT 12/05/2019 48782706.28Regular 0.00

01075 SIKICH LLP 12/05/2019 487839,000.00Regular 0.00

01318 SUNBELT RENTALS INC 12/05/2019 487841,247.07Regular 0.00

01092 US KIDS GOLF 12/05/2019 48785507.33Regular 0.00

02157 VERIZON 12/05/2019 48786108.03Regular 0.00

01774 VERMONT SYSTEMS INC 12/05/2019 487876,234.00Regular 0.00

01082 WAREHOUSE DIRECT 12/05/2019 48788180.24Regular 0.00

02100 ZURCHER TIRE INC 12/05/2019 48789132.00Regular 0.00

01006 ADP LLC 12/12/2019 487901,442.45Regular 0.00

01909 ANCEL GLINK PC 12/12/2019 487911,904.80Regular 0.00

01015 ASSOCIATED LABOR CORPORATION OF AMERIC 12/12/2019 4879216,143.71Regular 0.00

01957 BRANDON GLINSKI 12/12/2019 48793-100.00Regular 0.00

01957 BRANDON GLINSKI 12/12/2019 48793100.00Regular 0.00

01858 CALL ONE 12/12/2019 48794555.96Regular 0.00

01041 CONSTELLATION NEW ENERGY INC 12/12/2019 487952,900.21Regular 0.00

01367 CROWN TROPHY 12/12/2019 4879658.71Regular 0.00

01324 DIRECT FITNESS SOLUTIONS LLC 12/12/2019 487974,470.00Regular 0.00

01423 GORDON FOOD SERVICE INC 12/12/2019 487981,086.02Regular 0.00



Check Report Date Range: 12/01/2019 - 12/31/2019

1/14/2020 10:56:19 AM Page 2 of 4

Vendor Number Vendor Name Payment Amount NumberPayment TypePayment Date Discount Amount

02215 GRUMMAN/BUTKUS ASSOCIATES 12/12/2019 487992,782.96Regular 0.00

01693 HINCKLEY SPRINGS 12/12/2019 4880035.63Regular 0.00

01040 HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES 12/12/2019 48801699.83Regular 0.00

02206 ILLINOIS DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE 12/12/2019 48802150.00Regular 0.00

02217 KARL STEIGER 12/12/2019 488033,400.00Regular 0.00

01102 LIONS TAE KWON DO CENTER 12/12/2019 488041,552.50Regular 0.00

01162 MANZELLA PLUMBING INC 12/12/2019 48805585.00Regular 0.00

02073 MARKETING AND MORE GROUP LLC 12/12/2019 488063,779.00Regular 0.00

01720 NORTHFIELD HEATING AND AIR 12/12/2019 488072,600.00Regular 0.00

01134 NORTHWEST ELECTRICAL SUPPLY 12/12/2019 4880810.13Regular 0.00

01062 OFFICE DEPOT 12/12/2019 4880995.42Regular 0.00

01063 PDRMA 12/12/2019 4881015.00Regular 0.00

01168 POSTMASTER 12/12/2019 488111,294.02Regular 0.00

01120 REPUBLIC SERVICES INC 12/12/2019 48812775.98Regular 0.00

01865 SPORTS KIDS INC 12/12/2019 48813605.80Regular 0.00

02173 SWING KING 12/12/2019 4881480.00Regular 0.00

01781 THOMAS R PETZEL 12/12/2019 488151,390.00Regular 0.00

01082 WAREHOUSE DIRECT 12/12/2019 48816899.65Regular 0.00

01809 WOODWARD PRINTING SERVICES 12/12/2019 488174,056.00Regular 0.00

01667 AFLAC 12/19/2019 4881851.24Regular 0.00

01009 AIRGAS USA LLC 12/19/2019 48819195.69Regular 0.00

01356 ALL SEASONS UNIFORMS 12/19/2019 48820361.88Regular 0.00

02124 ALPHA BAKING COMPANY 12/19/2019 48821175.10Regular 0.00

02138 ANDERSON PEST SOLUTIONS 12/19/2019 48822142.75Regular 0.00

01015 ASSOCIATED LABOR CORPORATION OF AMERIC 12/19/2019 488238,860.62Regular 0.00

01020 BURRIS EQUIPMENT CO 12/19/2019 4882449.68Regular 0.00

01350 CHICAGO DISTRICT GOLF ASSOCIATION 12/19/2019 48825510.00Regular 0.00

01022 COMCAST 12/19/2019 4882610.43Regular 0.00

01022 COMCAST 12/19/2019 48827133.71Regular 0.00

01041 CONSTELLATION NEW ENERGY INC 12/19/2019 488284,183.57Regular 0.00

01041 CONSTELLATION NEW ENERGY INC 12/19/2019 488292.65Regular 0.00

01103 DANNA J. KOBESKI 12/19/2019 48830625.00Regular 0.00

01324 DIRECT FITNESS SOLUTIONS LLC 12/19/2019 488318,310.00Regular 0.00

01590 FRONTLINE TECHNOLOGIES GROUP LLC 12/19/2019 48832576.68Regular 0.00

01423 GORDON FOOD SERVICE INC 12/19/2019 488331,148.96Regular 0.00

02117 GREAT LAKES COCA-COLA DISTRIBUTION 12/19/2019 48834480.00Regular 0.00

01044 JC LICHT AND COMPANY 12/19/2019 488357.74Regular 0.00

02031 JOHNSON CONTROLS SECURITY SOLUTIONS 12/19/2019 48836269.58Regular 0.00

02097 MORGAN SERVICES INC 12/19/2019 48837463.91Regular 0.00

01057 NAPA HEIGHTS AUTOMOTIVE 12/19/2019 4883820.65Regular 0.00

01062 OFFICE DEPOT 12/19/2019 48839162.96Regular 0.00

01063 PDRMA 12/19/2019 4884021,409.76Regular 0.00

02062 PETTY CASH 12/19/2019 48841150.97Regular 0.00

02219 PROTANIC,INC 12/19/2019 48842815.00Regular 0.00

01031 PULSE TECHNOLOGY 12/19/2019 488431,100.00Regular 0.00

01071 REINDERS INC 12/19/2019 48844362.36Regular 0.00

01359 SHERWIN WILLIAMS CO 12/19/2019 4884546.98Regular 0.00

02134 TESTA PRODUCE INC 12/19/2019 48846562.45Regular 0.00

01964 THE WIFFLOT INC 12/19/2019 48847275.00Regular 0.00

01337 UNDERGROUND IMAGING 12/19/2019 488484,256.31Regular 0.00

01092 US KIDS GOLF 12/19/2019 48849304.71Regular 0.00

01565 USGA CLUB MEMBERSHIP 12/19/2019 48850150.00Regular 0.00

01081 VILLAGE OF MOUNT PROSPECT 12/19/2019 48851375.00Regular 0.00

01081 VILLAGE OF MOUNT PROSPECT 12/19/2019 4885246.26Regular 0.00

01081 VILLAGE OF MOUNT PROSPECT 12/19/2019 48853534.50Regular 0.00

01081 VILLAGE OF MOUNT PROSPECT 12/19/2019 48854200.30Regular 0.00

01143 VILLAGE OF MOUNT PROSPECT-SALES TAX 12/19/2019 48855194.75Regular 0.00

02218 William Teeple 12/19/2019 4885657.75Regular 0.00

01032 CARDMEMBER SERVICE 12/05/2019 DFT000110919,727.74Bank Draft 0.00

02206 ILLINOIS DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE 12/16/2019 DFT00011102,097.00Bank Draft 0.00

02206 ILLINOIS DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE 12/16/2019 DFT00011111,589.67Bank Draft 0.00



Check Report Date Range: 12/01/2019 - 12/31/2019

1/14/2020 10:56:19 AM Page 3 of 4

Vendor Number Vendor Name Payment Amount NumberPayment TypePayment Date Discount Amount

02206 ILLINOIS DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE 12/16/2019 DFT00011127,458.96Bank Draft 0.00

02206 ILLINOIS DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE 12/16/2019 DFT00011138,979.00Bank Draft 0.00

02204 WINTRUST ASSET FINANCE 12/03/2019 DFT00011142,175.60Bank Draft 0.00

02205 ILLINOIS MUNICILPAL FUND 12/05/2019 DFT000113314,874.92Bank Draft 0.00

Regular Checks

Manual Checks

Voided Checks

Discount
Payment

CountPayment Type

Bank Code AP Bank Summary

Bank Drafts

EFT's

110

0

2

7

0

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

119 0.00

Payment

223,235.55

0.00

-665.92

56,902.89

0.00

279,472.52

Payable
Count

162

0

0

8

0

170



Check Report Date Range: 12/01/2019 - 12/31/2019

Page 4 of 41/14/2020 10:56:19 AM

All Bank Codes Check Summary

Payment Type Discount
Payment 

Count Payment
Payable

Count

Regular Checks

Manual Checks

Voided Checks

Bank Drafts

EFT's

110

0

2

7

0

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

119 0.00

223,235.55

0.00

-665.92

56,902.89

0.00

279,472.52

162

0

0

8

0

170

Fund Name AmountPeriod

Fund Summary

950 POOLED CASH FUND 279,472.5212/2019

279,472.52



 
 

January 28, 2020 
 
To:  Christina Ferraro, Executive Director  
From:  Annette Curtis, Superintendent of Finance and Planning 
Re:     Board Report 
 
Payroll System 
After interviewing four vendors, staff continued discussion with two, Paycor and Paycom.  
Each provide end-to-end employee management, including applicant tracking.  Paycor 
has been selected as the finalist and agreements have been sent for legal review.  
Implementation will take 12 weeks.  A go-live date will be set for April.  
 
Phone System 
Four finalists were interviewed on January 10th.  Discussions continued with Comcast and 
Lungate.  Comcast has been selected as the finalist and agreements have been sent for 
legal review.  Implementation will take 90 days.  A go-live date will be set for April.  
 
2020 Audit   
Sikich completed the inventory at OOCC, both Pro-shop and F&B on January 14, 2020 
as they were onsite focusing on preliminary fieldwork.  The audit is scheduled for the 
week of March 2, 2020 and the report will be presented at the May board meeting.  



 
 

January 28, 2020  
 
To:  Board of Commissioners  
From:  Christina Ferraro, Executive Director   
Re:     December 2019 Board Report 
 
With payroll and phone projects underway, I will begin the RFP process to replace the 

electronic sign on Elm and West Camp McDonald Road in partnership with the the 

Library District.   

 

Staff requested Ancel Glink to review, update and suggest changes to the personnel 

manual.  The Board manual and then ordinance codes will follow.  These will all require 

board approval as projects are completed.  

 

Lexington Homes 

A list of concerns were compiled by the District’s Muir Park subcommittee and sent to 

Lexington.  Their responses were distributed to the entire board. The subcommittee is 

recommending the District grant Lexington permission to communicate and negotiate 

directly with the IDNR to determine whether there is any permutation of the proposed 

land swap which would receive approval by the Department and not be characterized as 

a conversion.  

 

Feasibility Study  
Staff met with Williams Architects in December to discuss program spaces. A few staff 
and I attended the Arlington Heights Park District’s VIP sneak peek of the Ridge Center 
in December.  Touring other facilities and talking with other District staff is always 
helpful in this process. I met with Greenplay and Williams this month to confirm a 
tentative conceptual plan for the GMRC. Williams will present a concept at the March 
31, 2020 board meeting. 
 

Legal Counsel  

Began reviewing the agreement for the potential cell phone tower lease 

Continue to wait on deed and ownership for grounds property 700 Camp McDonald Rd 

Continue to work on updating the District’s list of property held by Cook County 

Assessor to maintain an accurate list of tax exempt property 

 

 
 



 

 

 

January 21, 2020 

To:   Christina Ferraro, Executive Director  
From:   Julie Caporusso, Superintendent of Recreation  
Re:      January Board Report 
 
 
Front Desk 
Our annual training will be held on Friday, February 7 from 6-8PM.  The training will focus 
on the new interface that our software company introduced.  The front desk staff will have 
until Feb. 24 to practice on the new interface and receive further training if needed.  We 
will switch to the new interface on Feb. 24 District wide. 
 
 
Block Party 
The Block Party is set for Saturday, June 27 from 2-11pm.   The schedule will include: 
 
Music 
5pm                       Straight Ethyl  
7pm                       Cowboy Jukebox 
9:30pm                  7TH Heaven 
 
Activities 
2-11pm                 Beer & Wine Tent 
2-11pm                 Park District Concessions 
2pm                       PH “Got Talent” Competition 
4-11pm                 Food Trucks 
4:30pm                 PHYBS Treasure Hunt 
4:30-8:30pm         Kids Zone: Inflatable Attractions 
5-9pm                   Silent Auction for Preschool 
7:30pm                 Lions Club Duck Race Fundraiser 
 
 
Straight Ethyl is from Prospect Heights and is currently planning a PH Elementary 
School 1964 reunion around the Block Party. They reached out to over 80 people. 
 
  



Complete Count Committee 
I am on this City Committee that received a grant for a Block Party to promote census 
completions.  These details have been determined: 
 

• The Block Party will be held on Saturday, April 18, 2020 

• Hours of Block Party will be 1:00pm to 7:00pm 

• Willow Trails Park will be the central location of the event 

• Apple Drive will be closed along the park 

• Children activities, bouncy houses, touch-a-truck, etc. will be at the event 

• Local restaurants will be tapped to sell food and drink 

• Grant funds may be used to help subsidize the cost of food for the attendees 

• Tents will be utilized to assist in the event of inclement weather 

• A Spanish speaking band and a Polish speaking band will play live music 

• An English speaking band or DJ will provide additional musical entertainment 

• Residents will be able to participate in the Census at the event 

• Raffles for gift cards or donations from local companies will be utilized to promote 
census participation 

 

Marketing 
Our summer brochure has been submitted to the design company.  The first draft is due 
back January 27.  Approval of the final draft is set for February 20.  The brochure will be 
available online February 21. Delivery will be March 6. 
 
The City will be making a video highlighting Old Orchard on January 29 for their TV 
channel.   
 
PDRMA 
The full time staff will be trained on the Statement of Admissions in January. 
 
IPRA 
I will be attending the conference downtown on January 23 and January 24. 
 
 
NWSRA 
 
I attended the Program Inclusion Together Meeting on January 16. NWSRA’s Executive 
Director, Tracey Crawford, gave a seminar on Diversity.  



 
 

 
 
January 22, 2020 
 
To:  Christina Ferraro, Executive Director  
From:  Dino Squiers, Superintendent of Facilities & Parks 
Re:     January 2020 Board Report 
 
Bus #3 
Vehicle was dropped off at Best bus in Des Plaines for servicing of the handicap lift. 
 
GYM 
Overhead light fixture as you enter the gym would not turn on, replacement fixture was 
sent by supplier under warranty, we picked up the lift from the school district and installed 
the replacement fixture. 
 
HVAC 
Overhead heater in the park’s office shorted out and melted a connection in the 
thermostat box. Replacement heater was installed and splices in the thermostat box 
repaired.  
 
Concession Room 
Replacement ceiling tiles were installed in the concession stand, walls were cleaned and 
painted, old floor tiles, baseboard and island are being removed, once completed new 
floor and base will be installed. 
 
Fire alarm 
Annual testing for the fire alarm and sprinkler system at GMRC was completed. Fire alarm 
system at the administration was also inspected.  
 
Pre-School Room B 
Particle board cabinet doors and hardware was removed from the south wall of cabinets 
in room B, side framing and doors were wearing out since the particle board was cracking 
and brittle. Double wood doors replaced the larger openings and wood cabinets doors 
were made for the other openings. New wood framing was made for mounting of the new 
doors and hardware. Locksmith rekeyed door locks to match preschool hallway closets 
to avoid having additional keys.  
 
Parks 
Cleaned up, removal of debris and garbage pickup continues at the parks. Fallen 
branches are dropped off at the staging area and will be chipped in the spring.  



 
 

January 28, 2020 
 
To:  Christina Ferraro, Executive Director  
From:  Marc Heidkamp, Director of Golf Operations 
Re:     December 2019 Golf Operations Board Report 
 
GREENS 
Mild weather and nice temperatures raised debates whether or not we should re-open the course 
for the nice weather. At several discussions with the grounds department it was determined the 
risk was greater than the reward to open. Removal of the covers and no snow coverage to protect 
the greens would have put the course in jeopardy moving into the 2020 season. Staff continued 
working on equipment for 2020 season and cleaning debris on course during the month. 
 
CLUB HOUSE 
The facility remained open throughout December and ran the entire month without any 
breakdowns. We did sustain vandalism to the front of the club house; two large windows were 
broken and the entrance doors to the banquet room were damaged beyond repair. We submitted 
the repairs to the insurance and have been approved to repair and replace. 
 
GOLF OPERATIONS 
With the course closed we have maintained a busy schedule planning for 2020. We have filled 
90% of our outing business and are working to develop new ways to grow weekday golf traffic. 
Several new specials will roll out during the 2020 season to increase play and the customer 
experience for the season. The first special was the $99 three play passes. The result was an 
additional $6,500.00 in Golf Revenue for the 2020 season. We are rolling out a member campaign 
in late January that we hope will draw in some additional members. 
 
CONTINUING EDUCATION  
Doug and I will attend the Professional Golfers Conference in January to see the latest trends 
and better practices for 2020. I am always excited to learn about new approaches and seeing the 
latest equipment. 
 
SPECIAL EVENTS 
We hosted our first Brunch with Santa with over 150 guests in attendance. Everyone that attended 
enjoyed themselves. We are planning to add several more during the 2020 season: fish fry, 
supper club, Easter brunch, Cinco de Mayo, etc. By offering these promotion events we are able 
to expose the club to residents and guests that will help us develop additional business for the 
future. 
 
FOOD AND BEVERAGE 
It was a busy December with 9 private events and 2 weddings, reported below as well as the 
PHPD staff party and the Santa Brunch. In addition, a private wedding tasting was held for a 
couple who live in Germany.  We will be hosting their wedding at OOCC in September for about 
120 guests.  This produced revenue for December as follows:   
Private event revenues:  $ 31,881 627 guests 
Wedding revenues:   $ 18,019  261 guests 
 
 



December  2018 2019 

GREENS FEES $9,212 $9,97.17 

CART RENTAL FEES $0 $ 0 

APPAREL $347.98 $159.42 

EQUIPMENT $506.99 $145.71 

GOLF BALLS 0 $1,112.70 

DRIVING RANGE 0 0 

SPECIAL ORDERS $1,863 $1,381.52 

F AND B 0 $54,582.39 

OUTINGS 0 0 

TOTAL $11,929.97 $58,410.91 

 



 
 

January 22, 2020 
 
To:  Julie Caporusso, Superintendent of Recreation 
From:  Laura Fudala, Supervisor of Recreation 
Re:  January Board Report 
 
Preschool 
December 18 and 19 were the preschool holiday parties at OOCC.  The kids sang, visited 
with Santa, did a craft and enjoyed some refreshments.  The teachers did a very nice job 
preparing the kids for the event and making the room look festive.   
 
Youth Athletics 
The youth basketball league began on December 11th with a 3rd-6th grade player 
evaluation. For the 2020 season, we have 116 participants as compared to 92 participants 
in 2019. 
 
Fitness Center 
In December, we had 13 adult, 1 student daily fees.  Total Revenue $70  
The fitness center is now a SilverSneaker and Prime location.  To date we have 41 
SilverSneakers and 3 Prime.  Out of the 41 SilverSneakers, we have 7 SilverSneakers 
who had current senior memberships who switched over to SilverSneakers!   We currently 
have 192 fitness center members.   
 
Three Year Comparison 

Membership December 2017 December 2018 December 2019 

3 months 5 1 6 

6 months 3 2 0 

1 year 5 10 5 

 

Membership December 
2019 

# of Members Total Revenue 

3 months 4 $265 

1 year 4 $529 

Seniors 19 $1288 

 



 
  

January 2020   
 
To: Julie Caporusso, Superintendent of Recreation   
From:  Marci Glinski, Supervisor of Recreation  
Re: January 2020 Board Report 
 
Dance 
Spring dance classes began on January 13th. We currently have 109 dancers registered 
in 19 classes. This number is 30 dancers more than in Winter 2019.   
Our Competition Dance Teams will be performing at the Windy City Bulls Game on 
Saturday, Jan 25th at 6:20pm. Our first competition of the season will be at Des Plaines 
Dance Idol on Jan 31-Feb 2 at the Des Plaines Park District. We will have all 3 teams 
competing plus 3 solos & 2 duets.  
 
Performing Arts  
I am very excited to announce that Katie Williams (Year-round dance teacher) & Tyler 
Orlando, 2 of our Creative & Performing Arts Counselors have taken the reigns for the 
2020 Summer Production Camp Show “Wonka, The Golden Years”. They will be writing 
& directing the show.     
 
Active Adults 
We had an exciting Holidays season with our active adults!  Registration is underway for 
my winter spring trips.   
 
Special Events 
We finished the year out strong on the Holiday Trolley Express. Our Thursday trolley had 
97 people and Friday trolley had 156 people. I have already secured the trolley for 2020.  
New in 2020, I have added 2 additional time slots on both days. 
Our Kiddie Karnival was held on Monday, Jan 20th. We had 122 children participate in 
this family friendly carnival. Flower Garden Day Care came to our event with 37 kids and 
our own Kids Day Off came with 15 kids. A good time was had by all who attended. The 
Family Trivia Night is scheduled for Friday, Jan 24th.   
 



 

 
 
January 2020 
 
To:  Julie Caporusso, Superintendent of Recreation 
From: Jeanette Garrity, Supervisor of Recreation 
Re:  Board Report – January, 2020 
 
Program updates: Youth Programs, Kinder Stop & Aquatics 
 
Kinder Stop 
KinderStop is back up and running after the kids had a two-week break for the Holidays! There is 
currently a total of 134 students enrolled in KinderStop between the four areas of the program. 
Staff continue to come up with new and creative crafts for kids to do every day along with 
worksheets for the KinderStop AM and PM kids to do. Many parents have complimented staff on 
the crafts their kids have been doing and taking home.  
 
Kids Day Off 
There have been 8 Kids Day Off programs since my last report in December. During the two 
weeks of winter break, program activities were a Reptile Show (23 kids), Movie Spies in Disguise 
(16 kids), Pump it Up (17 kids), Wheeling Park District Indoor pool (17 kids), Enchanted Castle 
(30 kids) and Vertical Endeavors (25 kids). After winter break two more Kids Day Off programs 
came up a few weeks later on January 20th and 21st. On January 20th kids stayed at the Gary 
Morava Recreation Center and attended Kiddie Karnival (15 kids). On the following day January 
21st kids went to Nickel City with a boost in enrollment with 47 kids, this has been the highest 
enrollment day for the Kids Day Off program. The next two upcoming Kids Day Off programs are 
Friday February 14th with a trip to Hi-Five Sports and Monday February 17th with a trip to the 
Mount Prospect Ice Arena. 
 
Aquatics 
I am scheduled to attend the Jeff Ellis and Associates Lifeguard Instructor renewal class on Friday 
February 21st. This is a makeup class from the December 21st one that got cancelled. This class 
is twelve-hours of lifeguard training to get recertified as a Lifeguard Instructor for two years. I also 
will be attending PDRMA Aquatic Risk Management day on Wednesday February 19th.  
 
Emails were sent out to lifeguards to see if they will be returning for the summer 2020 season. 
Edlyn Castil also posted the job on the Prospect Heights Park District website as well as a banner 
was hung up on the fence near the exit of the park district to promote the job.  
 
 



 
 

January 28, 2020 
 
To:  Christina Ferraro, Executive Director  
From:  Annette Curtis, Superintendent of Finance and Planning 
Re:     Authorizing 2019 Transfers between Funds 
 
 
Transfers between individual funds require special approval from the Board of 
Commissioners.  The 2019 Budget included transfers, and was approved in January 
2019.  See attached 2019 Budget Worksheet.   
 
Following budget guidance, the attached Transfers YE 2019 summarizes the actual 
activity.  
 
Staff Recommendation 
Authorize transfers between individual funds as summarized.  



2019

Total Budget

FY2019 Budget Worksheet
Prospect Heights Park District, IL 1.28.2020

Fund: 409 - MUSEUM FUND

Fund: 100 - CORPORATE FUND Total: 134100

Fund: 100 - CORPORATE FUND

Expense

100-01-8081 OPERATING FUND TRANSFER OUT 134100

Expense Total: 134100

Fund: 412 - MEMORIAL FUND

Fund: 409 - MUSEUM FUND Total: 4250

Expense

409-99-8081 OPERATING FUND TRANSFER OUT 4250

Expense Total: 4250

Revenue

412-99-8080 OPERATING FUND TRANSFERS IN 4250

Revenue Total: 4250

Revenue Total: 154731

Fund: 518 - CAPITAL PROJECT FUND Total: 154731

Fund: 518 - CAPITAL PROJECT FUND

Revenue

518-99-8080 OPERATING FUND TRANSFERS IN 154731

Fund: 608 - 2014B (2005B Refinance)

Revenue

608-99-8082 TRANSFER IN 573200

Fund: 611 - 2018 ROLLOVER BOND

Fund: 608 - 2014B (2005B Refinance) Surplus (Deficit): 573200

Fund: 609 - 2016 Bond Fund

Revenue Total: 573200

Expense

611-99-8081 OPERATING FUND TRANSFER OUT 23221

Expense Total: 23221

Fund: 611 - 2018 ROLLOVER BOND Total: 23221

Fund: 612 - 2019 ROLLOVER BOND

Expense

612-99-8081 OPERATING FUND TRANSFER OUT 570610

Expense Total: 570610

Fund: 612 - 2019 ROLLOVER BOND Total: 570610

Report Surplus (Deficit): 0



Prospect Heights Park District 1.28.2020

TRANSFERS YEAR END / FY2019

MAJOR FUNDS

F100 F200 F300 F301 Minor F518 F523 F525 F608 F610 F611 F612 Total

Corp. Rec. Golf F&B Funds General Golf F&B 2014B 2017 2018 2019

IN -$                   -$           -$      -$    4,250.00$   143,340.00$    -$            630,812.50$    439,575.00$    33,706.00$    -$                -$                   1,251,683.50$     

IN 7,433.95$      

OUT 630,812.50$    -$           -$      -$    4,250.00$   -$                   -$            -$                   -$                   -$                33,706.00$    439,575.00$    1,251,692.50$     

OUT 7,433.95$         143,340.00$    

MINOR FUNDS

 Audit 

 Pave & 

Lighting  Liability  IMRF  Police  Museum 

 Special 

Recreation   Social Security   Memorial 

 Community 

Event 

F404 F405 F406 F407 F408 F409 F410 F411 F412 F413 Total

IN -$                   -$           -$      -$    -$             -$                   -$            -$                   4,250.00$         -$                4,250.00$             

OUT -$                   -$           -$      -$    -$             4,250.00$         -$            -$                   -$                   -$                4,250.00$             

Operation Capital Debt Service 

Total Transfers

Total Transfers



 

 

January 28, 2020 
 
To:  Park Board of Commissioners  

From:  Christina Ferraro, Executive Director 

Re:     Resolution adopting a policy for handling complaints of sexual harassment made 
by elected officials against other elected officials 

 
The Illinois General Assembly has enacted amendments to the State Officials and 

Employees Ethics Act in Public Act 101-221, effective August 9, 2019.  The Act requires 

units of local government to adopt an ordinance or resolution by February 9, 2020 (within 

6 months of the effective date of the Act), amending their existing sexual harassment 

policies to incorporate a mechanism for reporting and independent review of allegations 

of sexual harassment made against an elected official of the governmental unit by another 

elected official of a governmental unit.  

Alleged harassment by a commissioner against another elected official can be reported 

to the Board President. If the Board President is the reporting person or is implicated by 

the allegation, the report can be made to any other commissioner. Any report under this 

section must be referred to the district’s legal counsel, who then must appoint a 

qualified independent attorney or consultant to review and investigate the allegations. 

Another section of the new law will require all Illinois employers to provide sexual 

harassment training to their employees beginning next year. Employers may also 

establish and utilize their own sexual harassment prevention training program, but it 

must equal or exceed the state’s minimum state standards.  The Prospect Heights Park 

District will provide sexual harassment training to the Park board and all staff by the 

District’s legal counsel on April 28, 2020 at 6:00pm.  The Prospect Heights Park District 

will establish and utilize our own sexual harassment prevention training program based 

upon this training.    

 

 



 

 

PROSPECT HEIGHTS PARK DISTRICT 
 

RESOLUTION NO.  1.28.2020 
 

A RESOLUTION ADOPTING A POLICY FOR HANDLING COMPLAINTS OF SEXUAL 

HARASSMENT MADE BY ELECTED OFFICIALS AGAINST OTHER ELECTED 

OFFICIALS 

 

WHEREAS, the Prospect Heights  Park District (“Park District”) is mandated by the Illinois 

State Officials and Employees Ethics Act to adopt a resolution amending its sexual 

harassment policy to include a reporting and independent review procedure for 

allegations of sexual harassment by elected officials against other elected officials; and  

WHEREAS, the Park District Board of Commissioners (“Board”) recognizes the need to 

prevent all forms of sexual harassment; and 

WHEREAS, the Board intends to adopt a reporting and independent review policy which 

is attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and shall be included in the Park District’s sexual 

harassment policy;  

NOW, THEREFORE, be it resolved by the Board, as follows:  

SECTION 1:  The Board hereby adopts the attached policy (Exhibit “A”) for the reporting 

and investigation of sexual harassment complaints made by elected officials against 

elected officials and said reporting procedure shall be incorporated in the Park District’s 

sexual harassment policy; and  

SECTION 2: This Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage 

and approval according to law.   

 

 



 

 

Adopted by the Board of Park Commissioners of the Prospect Heights Park District, 

Illinois this 28th day of January, 2020. 

 
VOTE: 
 
AYES: _______________________ 
 
NAYS: _______________________ 
 
ABSENT:_____________________ 
 
       Approved by me this 
        28th day of January, 2020. 
 
 
       ___________________________ 
       President 
Attest: 
 
 
_________________________ 
Secretary 
 
  



 

 

 

EXHIBIT “A” 

COMPLAINT PROCEDURE FOR ELECTED OFFICIALS 

Any alleged harassment by an elected official against another elected official may be 

reported to the Park Board President. If the Board President is the person making the 

allegation or is the person alleged to have committed the harassment, then the report 

may be made to any other board member. The preference is that such complaints be 

submitted in writing with as much detail as possible regarding the alleged harassment 

including but not limited to the identity of the alleged harasser(s), when the incident(s) 

occurred, where they occurred, whether the incident(s) was witnessed and by whom and 

whether there is any physical evidence (video, audio, text, email, social media etc.) that 

needs to be identified and preserved. While there is a preference for complete and 

detailed written complaints, all complaints, including verbal complaints, will be thoroughly 

investigated. Upon receipt of an allegation of harassment pursuant to this policy, the 

person to whom the report has been made shall immediately refer the complaint to the 

Park District’s legal counsel for review. The Park District’s legal counsel shall then appoint 

a qualified independent attorney or consultant to review and investigate all allegations set 

forth in the complaint.  



 
 

January 28, 2020 
 
To:  Christina Ferraro, Executive Director  
From:  Annette Curtis, Superintendent of Finance and Planning 
Re:    Fiscal Year 2020 Budget 
 
2020 Budget 
Staff presented the District’s FY20 budget draft, including capital and debt, at the Finance 
Committee meeting on December 10, 2019 and then at the December 17, 2019 Board Meeting.   
 
The Budget and Appropriation Ordinance was post on the District’s website for public inspection 
and notice of public hearing has been posted in January 15-20, 2020 Journal & Topics.  
 
The 2020 Budget Booklet was distributed to Park Board Commissioners on Friday, January 17th 
for review.  
 
 
Staff Recommendation: 

Staff recommends approval of the Combined Budget and Appropriation Ordinance 
#01.28.2020 for fiscal year January 1, 2020 – December 31, 2020 



 

Prospect Heights Park District 
110 W. Camp McDonald Road, Prospect Heights, IL 60070 

(847) 394-2848 

 

 

 

 

 

COMBINED BUDGET &  

APPROPRIATION ORDINANCE  

# 01.28.2020 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

January 1, 2020 – December 31,  2020 
 

  

 
 

 
 

 

 

 



 

 

Prospect Heights Park District 

Combined Budget & Appropriation Ordinance 

01.28.2020 
 

 

 
AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING THE COMBINED ANNUAL  

BUDGET AND APPROPRIATION OF FUNDS FOR  

THE PROSPECT HEIGHTS PARK DISTRICT, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR BEGINNING ON  

THE FIRST (1st) DAY OF JANUARY, 2020 AND  

ENDING ON THE THIRTY-FIRST (31st) DAY OF DECEMBER, 2020 

 

 

 

 

 

 BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF PARK COMMISSIONERS (the Board) 

of the Prospect Heights Park District, (the “District”) of Cook County, Illinois: 

 

Section 1: It is hereby found and determined: 

(a) this Board has heretofore caused to be prepared a combined annual budget and 

appropriation in tentative form for the fiscal year beginning January 1, 2020 and 

ending December 31, 2020, which ordinance has been conveniently available for 

public inspection for at least 30 days prior to final action thereon: 

(b) a public hearing was held at the Gary Morava Recreation Center, Cook County, 

Illinois on the 28th day of January 2020 on said ordinance; and 

(c) that all other legal requirements for the adoption of the annual budget and 

appropriation ordinance of this District for the fiscal year beginning January 1, 2020 

and ending December 31, 2020 have heretofore been performed. 

 

Section 2: The following sums of money, or so much thereof as may be authorized 

by law for the following objects and purposes, be and the same are hereby budgeted and 

appropriated for the fiscal year beginning the first day of January, 2020 and ending on the 

thirty-first (31st) day of December, 2020. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



SUMMARY of ANNUAL BUDGET & APPROPRIATION ORDINANCE  

FOR FISCAL YEAR 2020 

 

 

 FUND       BUDGET  APPROPRIATION 

 

100 CORPORATE   $ 616,981      $   740,377 

200 RECREATION    1,855,799        2,226,959 

300 GOLF FUND   1,202,290        1,442,748 

301 FOOD & BEVERAGE     727,095           872,514 

404 AUDIT         15,500             18,600 

405 PAVING & LIGHTING        8,550             10,260 

406 LIABILITY INSURANCE      93,777           112,532 

407 I.M.R.F.      100,000           120,000 

408 POLICE        51,850             62,220 

409 MUSEUM          7,000               8,400 

410 SPECIAL RECREATION      92,693           111,232 

411 SOCIAL SECURITY     145,000           174,000 

412 MEMORIAL          5,190               6,228 

413 COMMUNITY EVENTS      28,575                    34,290 

 

 CAPITAL DEVELOPMENT / BONDS / RESERVES 

 

518 CAPITAL FUND      134,600            161,520 

523 CAPITAL FUND      359,400            431,280 

525 GOLF BANQUET CAPITAL       28,500              34,200 

608       BOND & INTERST-2014B            449,500                                539,400 

612       BOND & INTEREST-2019            610,693                                732,832 

613 BOND & INTEREST 2020       12,150              14,580 

     

 GRAND TOTALS  $6,545,143        $7,854,172 

 

 

Each of said sums of money and the aggregate thereof are deemed necessary by this 

Board to defray the necessary expenses and liabilities of this District during the fiscal 

year beginning the first day of January, 2020 and ending on the thirty-first (31st) day of 

December, 2020 for the respective purposes set forth. 

 

The passage by the Board of Commissioners of this 2020 Combined Annual Budget 

Appropriation Ordinance, including the “Appropriation” column, shall not be interpreted 

to authorize the expenditure within any fund of any amount greater than the amount 

budgeted for each fund in the “Budget” column. 

 

All unexpended balances of the appropriations for the fiscal year ended December 31, 

2020 and prior years are hereby specifically reappropriated for the same general purposes 

for which they were originally made and may be expended in making up any 

insufficiency of any other items provided in this appropriation ordinance, in making this 

appropriation in accordance with applicable law.  

 

The receipts and revenue of said District derived from sources other than taxation and not 

specifically appropriated, shall constitute the general corporate fund and shall first be 

placed to the credit of such fund. 



 

 

Section 3: The following determinations have been made and are hereby made a part 

of the aforesaid budget: 

(a) An estimate of the cash on hand at the beginning of the fiscal year is expected to be 

$3,107,113. 

(b) An estimate of the cash expected to be received during the fiscal year from all 

sources is $6,404,608. 

(c) An estimate of the expenditures contemplated for the fiscal year is $6,545,143 

(d) An estimate of the cash expected to be on hand at the end of the fiscal year is 

$2,966,578. 

(e) An estimate of the amount of taxes to be received during the fiscal year is 

$2,873,166. 

 
Section 4: All ordinances or parts of ordinances conflicting with any of the 

provisions of this ordinance shall be and the same are hereby repealed to the extent of 

such conflict.  If any item, or portion thereof, of this Budget & Appropriation Ordinance 

is for any reason held invalid, such decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining 

portion of such items or the remaining portions of this ordinance. 

 

This ordinance shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its passage. 

 

Passed by the Board of Park Commissioners of the Prospect Heights Park District, this 

28th day of January 2020. 

 

AYES:  

  

NAYS: 

  

ABSENT OR NOT VOTING:  

 

 

      _____________________________ 

      Timothy Jones,  President  

Board of Commissioners 

 

 

ATTESTED: 

 

______________________________ 

Ellen Avery, Board Secretary 

Prospect Heights Park District 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

CERTIFICATION OF ESTIMATE OF 

REVENUE FOR FISCAL YEAR 2020 

 

 

    I, Vicki Carney, do hereby certify that I am the duly qualified 

treasurer of the Prospect Heights Park District and the chief fiscal officer of said 

District; as such officer I do further certify that the revenues, by source, anticipated 

to be received by said District in the fiscal year beginning January 1, 2020 and 

ending on December 31, 2020 are estimated to be as follows: 

 

 

 SOURCE      AMOUNT 

 

Real Estate Taxes      $2,873,166 

Personal Property Replacement Taxes          14,568 

Interest              12,000 

Concessions              25,375 

Program Fees             1,073,442 

Golf Fees            998,550 

Golf Shop Sales           122,102 

Food & Beverage            683,200 

Bond Proceeds           602,205 

TOTAL       $6,404,608 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the seal of the 

said District this 28th day of January, 2020. 

 

 

 

(Seal) 

 

 

 

 
____________________________________________________ 

Vicki Carney, Treasurer, Prospect Heights Park District 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



STATE of ILLINOIS > 

     SS 

COUNTY of COOK  > 

 

 

 

 

   I, Ellen Avery, do hereby certify that I am the duly qualified 

and acting Secretary for The Board of Commissioners of the Prospect Heights Park 

District, in The County of Cook and State aforesaid, and as such Secretary I am the 

keeper of the records and files of the Board of Park Commissioners of said District. 

 

    I do further certify that the attached and foregoing is a true 

and complete copy of the “Combined Annual Budget & Appropriation Ordinance of 

the Prospect Heights Park District, Cook County, Illinois, for the Fiscal Year 

beginning January 1, 2020 and ending December 31, 2020”, as adopted by the 

Board of Park Commissioners at its properly convened meeting held on the 28th  

day of January, 2020, as appears from the official records of said District in my care 

and custody. 

 

   IN WITNESS WHEREOF,  I have hereunto affixed my official 

signature and the corporate seal of said District at 110 Camp McDonald Road, 

Prospect Heights, Illinois, on this 28th day of January, 2020. 

 

 

 

(Seal) 

 

 

 

 

__________________________ 

Ellen Avery, Board Secretary 

Prospect Heights Park District  
 



 

 

January 28, 2020 

To:  Park Board of Commissioners  

From:  Christina Ferraro, Executive Director 

Re:     Ordinance prohibiting the use of cannabis on Park District property  

The Cannabis Regulation and Tax Act, 410 ILCS 705/et seq., regulates the lawful use 

of cannabis in Illinois.  The Act indicates it is anyone to use cannabis on Park District 

property or in Park District facilities,  

 



ORDINANCE NO. 01.28.2020A 
 

AN ORDINANCE PROHIBITING THE USE OF 
CANNABIS ON PARK DISTRICT PROPERTY 

 
WHEREAS, the Prospect Heights Park District (“Park District”), Cook County, Illinois, is 
a duly organized and existing Park District created under the provisions of the laws of the 
State of Illinois, and operates under the provisions of the Park District Code and the laws 
of the State of Illinois, as amended; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Park District Code empowers the Park District to establish by ordinance 
all needful rules and regulations for the government and protection of property under its 
jurisdiction, 70 ILCS 1205/8-1(d, f); and 

 
WHEREAS, the Cannabis Regulation and Tax Act (“Act”), 410 ILCS 705/et seq., 
regulates the lawful use of cannabis in Illinois; and 
 
WHEREAS, nothing in the Act may be construed to require any person or establishment 
in lawful possession of property to allow a guest, client, lessee, customer, or visitor to use 
cannabis on or in that property, 410 ILCS 705/10-30(c); and 
 
WHEREAS, the Act allows civil, criminal, or other penalties against persons engaging in 
the use of cannabis in a public place as defined in the Act, 410 ILCS 705/10-35(a)(3)(f); 
and 
 
WHEREAS, a “public place” under the Act means any place where a person could 
reasonably be expected to be observed by others, including all parts of buildings owned 
in whole or in part, or leased by a unit of local government, and all areas in a park, 
recreation area, wildlife area, or playground owned in whole or in part, leased, or 
managed by a unit of local government, 410 ILCS 705/10-35(a); and 
 
WHEREAS, the Park District desires to prohibit the use of cannabis in on Park District 
Property, including in, public places, in all Park District buildings, and all Park District 
parks, recreation areas, wildlife areas, or playgrounds; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Board of Park Commissioners finds and hereby declares that it is 
necessary and appropriate and in the best interests of the health, safety, and welfare of 
Park District patrons to prohibit use of cannabis on all Park District property as hereinafter 
set forth; 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF PARK 

COMMISSIONERS OF THE PROSPECT HEIGHTS PARK DISTRICT, COOK 
COUNTY, ILLINOIS, AS FOLLOWS: 

 
SECTION ONE:  The foregoing recitals shall be, and they are hereby incorporated herein 
as if fully set forth within this Section One. 



SECTION TWO:  Cannabis Use Prohibited. 
A. The use of cannabis is prohibited on Park District property, including in any public 
place. 

B. The terms in this section shall have the meanings set forth in the Cannabis 
Regulation and Tax Act (410 ILCS 705/et seq.), as amended, unless the context clearly 
indicates otherwise. Specifically, the term “public place” means: 

 
1) any place where a person could reasonably be expected to be observed by others; 
2) all parts of buildings owned in whole or in part, or leased, by the Park District; 
3) all areas in a park, recreation area, wildlife area, or playground owned in whole or in 

part, leased, or managed by the Park District; and 
4) a private residence used to provide licensed child care, foster care, or other similar 

social service care on the premises. 
 

C. The penalty for the violation of this Ordinance is punishable by a fine not exceed 
$1,000 for any one offense. 
 
SECTION THREE:  Any and all policies, resolutions or ordinances of the Park District 
that conflict with the provisions of this Ordinance shall be, and they are hereby, repealed. 
 
SECTION FOUR:  In the event a court of competent jurisdiction finds this Ordinance or 
any provision hereof to be invalid or unenforceable as applied, such finding shall not affect 
the validity of the remaining provisions of this Ordinance and the application thereof to 
the greatest extent permitted by law. 
 
SECTION FIVE:  This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage 
and approval in the manner provided by law. 
 
PASSED THIS __________ day of ____________, 2020. 
 
AYES: 
 
NAYS: 
 
ABSENT: 
 
APPROVED THIS __________day of _________, 2020. 
 
 
 
      _________________________________ 
ATTEST:     President, Board of Park Commissioners 
 
 
_________________________________  
Secretary, Board of Park Commissioners 


	Cover Page 01.28.20
	Agenda 01.28.20
	Correspondence
	Minutes Regular Board Meeting 12.17.19
	Treasurer's Report Cash Report #1
	Treasurer's Report EFTs 12.2019
	Treasurer's Report Check Report 12.2019
	Superintendent of Finance and Planning Report
	Administrative/Operational Summary:  Executive Director
	Administrative/Operational Summary:  Superintendent of Recreation
	Administrative/Operational Summary:  Superintendent of Facilities and Parks
	Administrative/Operational Summary:  Director of Golf
	Administrative/Operational Summary:  Recreation Supervisors
	New Business: Authorizing 2019 Transfers between Funds
	New Business: Resolution No. 1.28.2020
	New Business: Ordinance No. 1.28.2020
	New Business: Ordinance No. 1.28.2020A

